BIBIRMINGHAM WATER WORKS

March 12, 2025

BID: 25-03-06

Subject: Invitation to Bid

Prospective Bidders:

Sealed bid packages for Knife Gate Valves & Appurtenances for Shades Mountain Filter Plant will be received in the Purchasing Department of the Birmingham Water Works Board, located at 3600 First Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35222, until 10:00 a.m. (CT), Friday, March 21, 2025, at which time and place they will be publicly opened and read. All potential suppliers must receive an executed copy of the applicable Receipt of Bid Package from the BWW Purchasing Department before their bid package may be considered responsive, pending evaluation of appropriate staff.

The bid opening will occur in the BWW Purchasing office; attendance can be in person or virtually via Microsoft Teams. For a link to the online bid opening, please email <u>Jonathan.Jett@bwwb.org</u>. Those attending the virtual meeting should log in at least five minutes before the bid opening as scheduled.

"Specifications and conditions" and "Bid Forms" are attached, and all bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, F.O.B destination, <u>Freight prepaid, and at no charge</u>. One signed copy of the bid form should be included in your sealed envelope and the bidder should retain a copy.

The right is reserved to reject any or all bids submitted, waive any informalities or technicalities, and award to the bidder deemed to best and most economically serve the Board's interests. The Board reserves the right to award the bid on an individual or total cost of bid basis. The Board reserves the right to extend the contract, upon mutual consent of both parties, up to two (2) additional years. The Board reserves the right to cancel this bid within thirty (30) days with written notice. The Board reserves the right to cancel the contract due to non-satisfactory performance, if the vendor is found to violate the terms and conditions, or does not correct any violations of specifications within two days after being given notice. The Board reserves the right to RE-BID. The Board reserves the right, upon mutual consent, to enter a month-to-month contract once the contract has ended, at the current prices, until the next bid has been awarded.

All bid packages must be hand-delivered to the BWW Purchasing Department, which is located at 3600 First Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35222. The bid packages must be directed to the attention of the Purchasing Manager and marked in the lower left-hand corner of the envelope as follows: "<u>Knife Gate Valves & Appurtenances for Shades Mountain Filter Plant</u>" due on <u>Friday, March 21, 2025</u>, at 10:00 a.m. (CT)" at which time and place they will be publicly opened and read.

Cordially,

Ly'Tonja Levert

Ly'Tonja Levert, Interim Purchasing Manager

SECTION 40 05 54

KNIFE GATE VALVES (KGV) & APPURTENANCES FOR SHADES MOUTAIN FILTER PLANT MAIN SERVICE AREA PIPELINES

PART 1 - GENERAL

<u>1.1</u> <u>DESCRIPTION</u>

- A. Scope:
 - 1. Vendor shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals as shown, specified, and required to furnish and deliver three (3) 24-inch stainless steel knife gate valves (KGV) with horizontally side-mounted handwheel operators and appurtenances, tested, complete and operational.
- B. Coordination:
 - 1. Vendor shall provide fully functional KGV on delivery including complete factory lubrication. The KGV shall be fully assembled except for the handwheel installation.
 - 2. Vendor shall provide installation procedures with the valve delivery.
 - 3. Vendor shall provide O&M Manual for the valves and the appurtenances.
- C. Related Sections: NOT USED
- D. The following index of this Section is included for convenience:

Article Title

- Part 1 General
 - 1.1 Description
 - 1.2 References
 - 1.3 Quality Assurance
 - 1.4 Submittals
- Part 2 Products
 - 2.1 General
 - 2.2 Design
 - 2.3 Materials
 - 2.4 Fabrication
 - 2.5 Actuators

<u>1.2</u> <u>REFERENCES</u>

A. Standards which may be referenced in this Section are listed below:

- 1. ANSI B16.1, Cast-Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings.
- 2. ANSI B16.34, Valves-Flanged, Threaded and Welding end. (ASME B16.34).
- 3. ANSI/NSF 61 Drinking Water Components Health Effects.
- 4. API STD 598, Valve Inspection and Testing.
- 5. ASTM A126, Specification for Gray Iron Castings for Valves, Flanges and Pipe Fittings.
- 6. ASTM A193/A193M, Specification for Alloy-Steel and Stainless Steel Bolting Materials for High-Temperature Service.
- 7. ASTM A564/A564M, Specification for Hot-Rolled and Cold-Finished Age-Hardening Stainless Steel Bars and Shapes.
- 8. ASTM A743/A743 M, Specification for Castings, Iron-Chromium, Iron-Chromium-Nickel, Corrosion Resistant, for General Application.
- 9. ASTM D429, Test Methods for Rubber Property Adhesion to Rigid Substrates.
- 10. AWWA C500, Metal-Seated Gate Valves for Water Supply Service.
- 11. AWWA C509, Resilient-Seated Gate Valves for Water Supply Service.
- B. Where reference is made in this Section to one of the following standards, only the applicable requirements of the revision in effect at the time of the bid opening shall apply.
 - 1. AMERICAN SOCIETY OF MECHANICAL ENGINEERS/AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE (ASME/ANSI)
 - 2. ASME/ANSI B16.10 Face-to-Face and End-to-End Dimensions of Valves
 - 3. AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION (AWWA)
 - 4. AWWA C520-19 Knife Gate Valves, Sizes 2 in. (50 mm) through 96 in. (2,400 mm)
 - 5. MANUFACTURERS STANDARDIZATION SOCIETY OF THE VALVE AND FITTING INDUSTRY (MSS)
 - 6. MSS SP 81 Stainless Steel, or Stainless-Steel-Lined, Bonnetless Knife Gate Valves with Flanged Ends
 - 7. MSS SP 151 Pressure Testing of Knife Gate Valves

<u>1.3</u> <u>QUALITY ASSURANCE</u>

- A. Manufacturer's Qualifications:
 - 1. The manufacturer must have at least five years of experience producing similar materials and equipment and be able to provide evidence of at least five successful projects in operation for a minimum of five years.
- B. Component Supply and Compatibility:
 - 1. Obtain each type of equipment and appurtenances included in this Section, regardless of the component manufacturer, from a single manufacturer of the type of process valve. For each type of valve, do not furnish valves of more than one manufacturer.
 - 2. Supplier of each type of equipment specified shall review and approve or prepare

all Shop Drawings and other submittals for all components associated with the type of process valve Supplier is furnishing.

3. Components shall be suitable for use in the specified service conditions. Components shall be integrated into the overall assembly by the process valve manufacturer.

<u>1.4</u> <u>SUBMITTALS</u>

- A. Action Submittals: Submit the following:
 - 1. Shop Drawings: (Required to be submitted and approved prior to commencing fabrication)
 - a. Installation drawings showing orientation of knife gate valves in both plan and elevation view, including actuators, handwheels. Drawings shall clearly identify valve and its appurtenances, including controls, actuators, valve stems, and other components. Show dimensions of valves and appurtenances in relation to piping and structural and architectural components, where applicable.
 - b. Calculations for maximum torque (lb.ft.) and maximum thrust (lbs.) for each of the valves to be provided and installed.
 - c. Calculations for determining size (length, width and depth) of Stainless Steel base plate for each of the proposed KGV's.
 - 2. Product Data: (Required to be submitted and approved prior to commencing fabrication)
 - a. Product data sheets.
 - b. Complete catalog information, including dimensions, weight, specifications, and identification of materials of construction of all parts.
 - c. Corrosion resistance information to confirm suitability of valve materials for the application. Furnish information on chemical resistance of elastomers from elastomer manufacturer.
 - d. Drawings showing valve manufacturer, assembly details, materials of construction, bills of material, dimensions, weights, valve model number and any other pertinent information so required or as requested by the Owner.
- B. Informational Submittals: Submit the following:
 - 1. Manufacturer Instructions:
 - a. Submit manufacturer's instructions for handling, storing, and installing valves and appurtenances. Provide templates and setting drawings for valves and appurtenances.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 APPROVED MANUFACTURERS

A. If the Bidder proposes to furnish a valve manufactured by other than an approved Manufacturer, the alternative Manufacturer and valve model shall be identified in the bid. If an alternative Manufacturer and valve model is not submitted with the bid, it shall be assumed that the bid has been submitted with a valve supplied by an approved Manufacturer. In the case where the Bidder proposes the valve of an alternative Manufacturer, the acceptability of the valve will not be considered by the Owner until after the effective date of the agreement. If upon subsequent consideration the alternative valve is deemed to be not acceptable by the Owner, the Bidder shall furnish the valve of an approved Manufacturer at no additional cost.

- B. The valves shall be **Bi-directional** Stainless Steel Knife Gate Valve to be approved by the Owner. All substituted valves will be considered and reviewed for operational acceptance by the Owner with full data sheets provided by supplier. Provide products of one of the following:
 - 1. Henry Pratt LVC FIG. 77 A6E BG4
 - 2. Or approved equal

2.2 DESIGN

- A. General.
 - 1. The valve shall meet the applicable requirements of MSS SP-81 or AWWA C520.
 - 2. The valve shall be designed so that all required lubrication can be performed with the valve installed.
 - 3. The pressure class of valve flanges shall be equal to or greater than the pressure rating of the valve as listed below.
- B. Valve service: Open/Close
- C. Flow media: Finished Water
- D. Normal operating pressure: 50 psig
- E. Maximum operating pressure: 50 psig
- F. Valve design pressure: 150 psig
- G. Valve Body: 316 Stainless Steel
- H. Valve shutoff type: EPDM seat Bi-directional
- I. Valve gate material and type: 316 Stainless Steel
- J. Flange face type: Raised
- K. Valve style: Wafer
- L. Yoke: 304 Stainless Steel
- M. Flange drilling standard: Drilled and tapped to ANSI B16.5/150
- N. Valve orientation: Vertical
- O. Valve stem type: Rising 304 Stainless Steel
- P. Other design requirements:
 - 1. Lubrication: PTFE synthetic fiber (TLSP) packing.
 - 2. Gear Actuator: bevel 4:1 with 20" handwheel
 - 3. Packing gland: 316 Stainless Steel.

2.3 MATERIALS

- A. Material source restrictions: Imports Allowed
- B. Body and flanges: T316 Stainless Steel
- C. Gate: T316 Stainless Steel
- D. Stem: T304 Stainless Steel

- E. Backseat ring: T316 Stainless Steel
- F. Stem extensions: T304 Stainless Steel.
- G. EPDM seat Bi-directional
- H. Packing gland: T316 Stainless Steel.
- I. Packing: PTFE synthetic fiber (TLSP) packing.
- J. Yoke: T304 Stainless Steel.
- K. Fasteners: T304 stainless steel.

2.4 FABRICATION

- A. Flange faces shall be machined and grooved with a spiral serrated finish.
- B. Flange bolt holes shall be: Drilled and tapped.
- C. Provide Type stainless steel nameplate attached with Type stainless steel rivets. Nameplates shall have stamped letters and shall include serial number, pressure rating, and other essential information.
- D. For stainless steel bolting, except where Nitronic 60 or bronze nuts are provided, use graphite-free anti-seize compound to prevent galling.
- E. Painting and coating:
 - 1. External surfaces of the valve shall be free of grease or oil and machined surfaces shall be protected with an anti-corrosive preparation.
 - 2. Paint color shall be:
 - a. Manufacturer's standard colors.

2.5 ACTUATORS

- A. The valve Manufacturer shall mount and test all actuators at the factory (Manual Handwheel).
 - 1. A handwheel bevel gear 4:1 operator shall be provided. The bevel gear operator shall have fully enclosed gears, be permanently lubricated, and possess a gear ratio.
 - 2. 20" handwheel which will be a horizontally side mounted actuator at the valve, (not a vertical mounted hand wheel at the top of the stem).
 - 3. Actuator components shall be designed to withstand, without damage, a pull of 200 pounds for handwheel
 - 4. Handwheels:
 - a. Conform to applicable AWWA standards.
 - b. Material of Construction: Ductile iron or cast aluminum.
 - c. Arrow indicating direction of opening and word "OPEN" shall be cast on trim of handwheel.
 - d. Maximum Handwheel Diameter: 20-Inch.

++ END OF SECTION ++

INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

Solicitation Name: Knife Gate Valves & Appurtenances for Shades Mountain Filter Plant

Solicitation Number: 25-03-06

1. Introduction

1.1. Purpose of Procurement

Pursuant to State of Alabama Code § 41-16-54 this solicitation request is being issued to establish a contract with one or more qualified suppliers who will <u>Knife Gate Valves &</u> Appurtenances for Shades Mountain Filter Plant Main Service Area Pipelines of the Birmingham Water Works (hereinafter, "the BWW") as further described in this solicitation.

The BWW reserves the right to purchase from any State of Alabama contract or an approved cooperative purchasing agreement if it is more economical and/or in the BWW's best interest.

1.2. Overview of the Solicitation Process

The objective of the solicitation is to select one or more qualified suppliers (as defined by Section 1.1 "Purpose of the Procurement") to provide the goods and/or services outlined in this solicitation to the BWW. This solicitation process is being conducted to gather and evaluate responses from supplier(s) for potential award(s). All qualified suppliers are invited to participate by submitting responses, as further defined below.

NOTE TO SUPPLIERS: The general instructions and provisions of this document have been drafted with the expectation that the BWW may desire to make one award or multiple awards. For example, this document contains phrases such as "contract(s)" and "award(s)". Please refer to Section 1.1 "Purpose of the Procurement" and Section 6.6 "Selection and Award" for information concerning the number of contract awards expected.

1.3. Schedule of Events

The schedule of events set out herein represents the BWW's best estimate of the schedule that will be followed. However, delays to the procurement process may occur which may necessitate adjustments to the proposed schedule. If a component of this schedule, such as the close date, is delayed, the rest of the schedule may be shifted as appropriate. Any changes to the dates up to the closing date of the solicitation will be publicly posted prior to the closing date of this solicitation. After the close of the solicitation, the BWW reserves the right to adjust the remainder of the proposed dates, including the dates for evaluation, award, and the contract term on an as needed basis with or without notice.

Description	Date	Time
Release of Solicitation	As published per state law.	N/A
Deadline for written questions sent via email to the Issuing Officer referenced in	March 18, 2025	4:00 p.m. CST
Section 1.4.		031
Bidders/Offerors' Conference Location: None	N/A	N/A
Responses to Written Questions	March 19, 2025	3:00 p.m. CST
Bids Due/Close Date and Time	March 21, 2025	10:00 AM

Bid Evaluation Completed (on or about)	One to Two Weeks after	N/A
	Close Date	
Finalize Contract Terms	Two to Three Weeks after	N/A
	Close Date	

1.4. Official Issuing Officer (Procuring Agent) Jonathan Jett Jonathan.Jett@bwwb.org (email address)

1.5. Definition of Terms

Please review the following terms:

- Awarded Supplier- The supplier with whom the BWW will source products and/or services from as a result of the awarded contract and/or BWW issued PO
- Birmingham Water Works Board the governmental entity identified in Section 1.1 "Purpose of Procurement" of this solicitation
- Birmingham Water Works Nine Member Voting Board of Directors- The awarding authority for BWW.
- > Board- Birmingham Water Works Nine Member Voting Board of Directors
- Contract Amendment Form- a BWW issued document that adds, deletes, corrects, and/or modifies items such as contract extensions, terms revisions, increase or decrease of commodities, assignments, delegations of approval bodies, etc...
- Historically Underutilized Business- A business formed for the purpose of making a profit and is at least 51% owned, operated and/or controlled by one or more American citizens or permanent resident aliens who are: Minority Business Enterprise (MBE); Women's Business Enterprise (WBE); Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Disable Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE); (herein sometimes collectively referred to as HUB)
- HUB Forms- Any document that captures information to determine if a company has received the verifiable status of Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), Women's Business Enterprise (WBE), Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), or Disable Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE). All HUB Forms are verified and approved by appropriate parties.
- Supplier(s) companies desiring to do business with the BWW

1.6. Contract Term and Renewal

Award shall be made to the lowest responsive and responsible supplier(s) as described in <u>Section 6</u> of this document. The initial term of the contract shall be for a period of one (1) year from date of award and prices quoted shall remain effective for that period. The Board reserves the sole right to extend any applicable contract(s) for up to two (2) additional one (1) year periods or as allowable per State of Alabama law, upon receipt of request for extension from the vendor.

It is expected that this contract will begin upon Board approval

All contract renewals must be approved by the Board. Before the contract end date, the BWW shall submit a Contract Amendment Form to the awarded supplier(s). The Contract Amendment Form may include any mandatory or implicative contract changes from BWW.

2. Instructions to Suppliers

By submitting a response to the solicitation, the supplier is acknowledging that the supplier:

- 1. Has read the information and instructions,
- 2. Agrees to comply with the information and instructions contained herein.

2.1. General Information and Instructions

2.1.1. Restrictions on Communicating with BWW Personnel

From the issue date of this solicitation until the award is approved by the Birmingham Water Works Nine Member Voting Board of Directors, suppliers are not allowed to communicate for any reason with any BWW Personnel except through the Issuing Officer named herein, the Issuing Officer's designee, or during the Bidders/Offerors' conference (if any), or as defined in this solicitation or as provided by existing contract(s). Prohibited communication includes all contact or interaction, including but not limited to telephonic communications, emails, faxes, letters, or personal meetings, such as lunch, entertainment, or otherwise. The BWW reserves the right to reject the response of any supplier violating this provision.

2.1.2. Attending Bidders/Offerors' Conference

The Bidders/Offerors' conference or any other information session (if indicated in the schedule of events) will be held at the offices referred to in Section 1.4 "Schedule of Events". Unless indicated otherwise, attendance is not mandatory, although suppliers are strongly encouraged to attend. However, in the event the conference has been identified as mandatory, then a representative of the supplier must attend the conference in its entirety to be considered eligible for contract award. The supplier is strongly encouraged to allow ample travel time to ensure arrival in the conference meeting room prior to the beginning of any mandatory conference. The BWW reserves the right to consider any representative arriving late to be "not in attendance." Therefore, all suppliers are strongly encouraged to arrive early to allow for unexpected travel contingencies.

2.1.3. BWW's Right to Request Additional Information - Supplier Responsibility

Prior to an award, the BWW must be assured that the selected supplier has all of the resources to successfully perform under the contract. This includes, but is not limited to, adequate number of personnel with required skills, availability of appropriate equipment in sufficient quantity to meet the on-going needs of the BWW, financial resources sufficient to complete performance under the contract, and experience in similar endeavors. If, during the evaluation process, the BWW is unable to assure itself of the supplier's ability to perform, before award, the BWW shall have the option of requesting from the supplier any information deemed necessary to determine the supplier's responsibility. If such information is required, the supplier will be so notified and will be permitted approximately seven (7) business days to submit the information requested.

2.1.4. Failing to Comply with Submission Instructions

Responses received after the identified due date and time or submitted by any other means than those expressly permitted by the solicitation will not be considered. Responses must be complete in all respects, as required in each section of this solicitation.

2.1.5. Rejection of Responses; BWW's Right to Waive Immaterial Deviation

The BWW reserves the right to reject any or all responses, to waive any irregularity or informality in a response, and to accept or reject any item or combination of items, when to do so would be to the advantage of the BWW. It is also within the right of the BWW to reject responses that do not contain all elements and information requested in this

solicitation. A response will be rejected if the response contains any defect or irregularity and such defect or irregularity constitutes a material deviation from the solicitation requirements, which determination will be made by the BWW on a case-by-case basis.

2.1.6. BWW's Right to Amend and/or Cancel the Solicitation

The BWW reserves the right to amend this solicitation. Any revisions will be made in writing prior to the solicitation closing date and time. By submitting a response, the supplier shall be deemed to have accepted all terms and agreed to all requirements of the solicitation (including any revisions/additions made in writing through an addendum posted by BWW, prior to the close of the solicitation whether or not such revision occurred prior to the time the supplier submitted its response. THEREFORE, EACH SUPPLIER IS INDIVIDUALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR REVIEWING THE REVISED SOLICITATION AND MAKING ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE CHANGES AND/OR ADDITIONS TO THE SUPPLIER'S RESPONSE PRIOR TO THE CLOSE OF THE SOLICITATION. The BWW reserves the right to cancel and if desired, re-advertise this solicitation at any time.

2.1.7. Costs for Preparing Responses

Each response should be prepared simply and economically, avoiding the use of elaborate promotional materials beyond those sufficient to provide a complete presentation. The cost for developing the response and participating in the procurement process is the sole responsibility of the supplier. The BWW will not provide reimbursement for such costs.

2.1.8. Quantities or Estimates of Products and Services

The quantities specified herein are estimates based upon current consumption and projected demand for the next contract year and shall not be construed to represent an amount which the BWW shall be obligated to utilize or purchase. The exact amounts ordered may be more or less and subject to BWW's actual needs. The responding supplier acknowledges and agrees that the BWW will only be responsible for the commodities and/or services actually purchased and/or consumed.

2.1.9. Permits and Licensing

The awarded supplier shall be responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses, certifications, bonds, etc., required by federal, state, county, and municipal laws, regulations codes, and ordinances for the performance of the work required in these specifications and to conform to the requirements of said legislation. All fees must be included in the contract amount and paid by the awarded supplier.

2.1.10. Use of Subcontractor(s)

Except as may be expressly agreed to in writing by the BWW, the awarded supplier shall not subcontract, assign, delegate, or otherwise permit anyone other than the supplier's personnel to perform any of supplier's obligations under the executed contract.

No subcontract which the awarded supplier enters into with respect to performance of obligations or work assigned under the BWW awarded contract shall in any way relieve the supplier of any responsibility, obligation, or liability under the contract which may be awarded from this solicitation.

All restrictions, obligations, and responsibilities of the supplier under the awarded contract shall also apply to any subcontractor(s) that may be sourced by the supplier. Any contract with a subcontractor must preserve the rights of the BWW. The BWW shall

have the right to request the removal of a subcontractor from the awarded contract with or without cause.

2.1.11. Supplier Performance

In the event the BWW deems it expedient to perform service(s) or source alternate similar/like products(s) which have not been provided by the supplier as required by the awarded contract, or to correct work which has been inadequately performed by the supplier as required in the solicitation documents, BWW reserves the sole right to procure services and/or products from another source and may charge the difference between the contract and the substitute contract to the defaulting supplier.

The BWW reserves the right to inspect the manufacturing and/or service development process of any awarded supplier's products and/or services.

2.1.12. Supplier Warranties

The awarded supplier represents and warrants that the goods and services provided in accordance with this solicitation will appear and operate in conformance with the terms and conditions of the finalized contract.

All goods delivered by awarded supplier to the BWW shall be free from any defects in design, material, or workmanship. If any goods offered by the awarded contractor are found to be defective in material or workmanship, or do not conform to supplier's warranty, the BWW shall have the option of returning, repairing, or replacing the defective goods at awarded supplier's expense. Payment for goods shall not constitute acceptance. Acceptance by the BWW shall not relieve the awarded supplier of its warranty or any other obligation under the finalized contract.

The awarded supplier represents and warrants that title to any property assigned, conveyed or licensed to the BWW is good and that transfer of title or license to the BWW is rightful and that all property shall be delivered free of any security interest or other lien or encumbrance.

The awarded supplier represents and expressly warrants that all aspects of the goods and services provided or used by it shall at a minimum conform to the standards in the supplier's industry. This requirement shall be in addition to any express warranties, representations, and specifications included in the finalized contract, which shall take precedence.

2.1.13. Priority Customer Status

By submitting a Cost Worksheet response to this solicitation, supplier understands and acknowledges that the BWW provides water services that are essential to the health and welfare of the public. Failure of an awarded supplier to provide materials under any awarded contract issued pursuant to this solicitation may jeopardize the BWW's ability to provide timely services, which may affect the health and welfare of the public served by the BWW. In the event of product shortages at any level of the production to delivery chain, awarded supplier(s) agrees and affirms that the BWW will be given the earliest possible notice of supply chain issues and the highest priority for allocation of the item(s) listed herein. To the extent that awarded supplier(s) must prioritize and/or allocate delivery among its customers, the requirements of the BWW will be honored before contract items are provided to a customer with no obligations with regard to the public health and welfare.

2.1.14. Silence of Specifications

THE APPARENT SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS AS TO ANY DETAIL OR TO THE APPARENT OMISSION FROM IT OF A DETAILED DESCRIPTION CONCERNING ANY POINT, SHALL BE REGARDED AS MEANING THAT ONLY THE BEST COMMERCIAL PRACTICES ARE TO PREVAIL.

2.2. Submittal Instructions

2.2.1. Solicitation Review

Please carefully review all information contained in the Event, including all documents available as attachments or available through links. Any difficulty accessing the documents or opening provided links or documents should be reported immediately to the Issuing Officer (Section 1.4).

2.2.2. Preparing a Response to The Solicitation

- The BWW will not be responsible for the supplier's misunderstanding of the scope of work or any terms and conditions of the solicitation. The BWW will not be responsible for oral interpretations of this solicitation. Supplier's questions and/or comments concerning lack of clarity, defects and questionable or objectionable material in the solicitation must be submitted in writing to and received by the Issuing Officer, or their designee, no later than the deadline for questions date noted on the Schedule of Events (Section 1.3). Questions must specify the Section(s), paragraph(s), and page number(s) to which the question refers.
- Use the BWW provided worksheets to prepare your response. Unless otherwise directed, do not insert "see attached document" (or similar statements) in the worksheet to reference separate documents. Please review and confirm that the most competitive response has been provided.
- 3. Answer each question in sufficient detail for evaluation while using judgment with regards to the length of response.
- 4. Proofread your response and make sure it is accurate and readily understandable.
- 5. Label any and all documents using the corresponding section numbers of the solicitation or any other logical name so that the BWW can easily organize and navigate the supplier's response

3. Instructions to Suppliers

This **section** contains general business requirements. By submitting a response, the supplier is certifying its agreement to comply with all of the identified requirements of this section and that all costs for complying with these general business requirements are included in the supplier's submitted Cost Worksheet.

3.1. Standard Insurance Requirements and Bonding

Insurance

Suppliers shall not commence any work until all the insurance as provided herein is obtained nor until the BWW has approved such insurance. Certificates issued by the Supplier's Insurance Company must be filed with the BWW before any work is commenced as evidence of the insurance as provided herein. Such certificates must contain a clause stating that the Insurance Company will notify the BWW ten days prior to any change, cancellation, or renewal of the Supplier's insurance.

- 1. Workmen's Compensation Insurance: The Supplier shall carry Workmen's Compensation Insurance during the life of the Contract to insure statutory liability to their employees.
- 2. Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage: The Supplier shall carry Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage Insurance during the life of the contract covering all of the Supplier's own operations. The limits shall not be less than \$1,000,000 for bodily injury and \$500,000 for property damage.
- 3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage: The Supplier shall carry Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance during the life of the contract covering supplier's own automobile equipment and if any, supplier hired and non-supplier owned vehicles. The limits shall not be less than \$100,000 for each person, \$300,000 each accident for bodily injury, and \$100,000 for property damage.

Bonding

1. No Bonds shall be required.

3.2 **Proposal Certification**

By responding to this solicitation, the supplier understands and agrees to the following:

- 1. That the submitted Cost Worksheet constitutes an offer, which if accepted in writing by the BWW, and subject to the terms and conditions of such acceptance, will constitute a valid and binding contract between the supplier and the BWW; and
- 2. That the supplier guarantees and certifies that all items included in the supplier's response meet all of the solicitation's identified specifications and requirements except as expressly stated otherwise in the supplier's response; and
- 3. That the response submitted by the supplier shall be valid and held open for a period of **ninety (90) days** from the final solicitation closing date and that the supplier's offer may be held open for a lengthier period of time subject to the supplier's consent; and
- 4. That the supplier's response is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. Supplier understands and agrees that collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards; and
- 5. That any provision of the State of Alabama Code has not been violated and will not be violated in any respect.

4. Solicitation Bid Factors

This section contains the detailed technical requirements and related services for this solicitation. The BWW has determined that it is best to define its own needs, desired operating objectives, and desired operating environment. The BWW will not tailor these needs to fit a particular solution a supplier may have available; rather, the suppliers shall propose to meet the BWW's needs as defined in this solicitation. All claims shall be subject to demonstration. Suppliers are cautioned that conditional responses/bids, based upon assumptions, may be deemed non-responsive.

<u>Unless requested otherwise, all responses must be provided within the provided forms included with</u> <u>this solicitation</u>.

4.1. Introduction

All of the items described in this section are service levels and/or terms and conditions that the BWW expects to be satisfied by any awarded supplier. Each supplier must indicate its willingness and ability to satisfy these requirements in the supplier's submitted response.

Unless otherwise specified, references to brand name or trade name/mark products are intended to be descriptive, but not restrictive, and are used to indicate the quality and characteristics of products that may be offered. Other products may be considered for award if such products are clearly identified and are determined by the BWW to meet its needs in all respects. Each supplier's response must indicate the brand name, model, and/or series number of the product offered and include such specifications, catalog pages, or other data that will provide an adequate basis for determining the quality and functional capabilities of the product offered.

4.2. Mandatory Requirements

As noted in the preceding section, this solicitation contains mandatory requirements (e.g., product specifications, service or quality levels, staff requirements, experience, or license requirements, etc.) which must be met by the supplier in order for the supplier to be considered "responsive" and, therefore, eligible for contract award. These mandatory requirements will be defined in one or more of the following ways:

- 1. Requirements in this solicitation document
- 2. Requirements contained in any attachment to this solicitation, such as HUB Documents, EEO Report, Certification of Non- Discrimination, Debarment Form, any BWW requested bonds, and the Cost Worksheet

5. Cost Worksheet

Each supplier is required to submit pricing as part of their response.

5.1. General Pricing Rules

By submitting a response, the supplier agrees that it has read, understood, and will abide by the following instructions/rules:

- 1. The submitted pricing must include all costs of performing pursuant to the resulting contract; and
- 2. Bids containing a minimum order/ship quantity or dollar value, unless otherwise called for in the solicitation, will be treated as non-responsive and may not be considered for award; and
- 3. The supplier is required to provide net prices. In the event there is discrepancy between a supplier's unit price and extended price, the unit price shall govern;
- 4. The prices quoted and listed in the response shall be firm throughout the term of the resulting contract, unless otherwise noted in the solicitation or contract; and
- 5. Unless otherwise specified in any terms and conditions issued by the BWW to the solicitation, all product deliveries will be F.O.B. destination and all shipping charges must be included in the quoted cost; and
- 6. Unless expressly permitted by the solicitation, responses containing provisions for late or interest charges will not be awarded a contract. Suppliers must "redact" any such provisions in their submitted forms; and
- 7. Responses containing prepayment and/or progress payment requirements may be determined non-responsive unless otherwise permitted by the solicitation; and
- 8. Unless permitted by the solicitation, responses requiring payment from the BWW in less than thirty (30) days will be considered non-responsive; and

9. The BWW is exempt from certain taxes and no provision for such taxes should be included in the supplier's response.

5.2 Cost Structure and Additional Instructions

BWW's intent is to structure the cost format in order to facilitate comparison among all suppliers and foster competition to obtain the best market pricing. Consequently, the BWW requires that each supplier's cost be structured as directed in the solicitation. Additional alternative cost structures will not be considered. Each supplier is hereby advised that failure to comply with the solicitation instructions, submission of an incomplete offer, or submission of an offer in a different format than the one requested may result in the rejection of the supplier's response.

Enter all information directly into the Cost Worksheet(s). Enter numbers on each cost sheet in "number" (two-place decimal), not "currency" or other format unless otherwise stated. That is, omit dollar signs, commas, and any other non-essential symbols. (e.g., \$7.90 should be entered as 7.90) Prices must be in US Dollars. Enter "n/a" to indicate not available or "0" if there is no charge. Cells left blank will be interpreted as "no offer".

6. Evaluation and Award

All timely responses will be evaluated in accordance with the following steps. The objective of the evaluation process is to identify the most competitive bid. Once the evaluation process has been completed, the apparent successful supplier(s) will be required to enter into discussions with the BWW to resolve any exceptions to BWW's contract.

6.1. Administrative/Preliminary Review

First, the responses will be reviewed by the Issuing Officer, or their designee, to determine compliance with the following requirements:

- 1. Response was submitted by deadline
- 2. Response is complete and contains all required documents

6.2. Evaluating Bid Factors

If the supplier's response passes the Administrative/Preliminary Review, the supplier's responses will be evaluated. Responses to mandatory requirements will be evaluated on a pass/fail basis. If a response fails to meet a mandatory requirement, the BWW will determine if the deviation is material. A material deviation will be cause for rejection of the response. An immaterial deviation will be processed as if no deviation had occurred.

6.3. Evaluating Cost

BWW may utilize lowest cost, lowest total cost, and total cost of ownership (TCO) or greatest savings to determine the most competitive pricing. Submitted pricing may be evaluated/scored on an overall basis or at the category/subcategory/line level (as applicable) relative to other responses/bids.

6.4. Local Preference

BWW may choose to utilize a local preference for the award of a contract for items of personal property or services as provided by and in accordance with State of Alabama Code §41-16-50 of the Code of Alabama (1975). A local preference is not applicable to the award of a contract funded by federal grant. Per State of Alabama Code § 41-16-50, the BWW considers Blount, Jefferson, St. Clair, and Shelby Counties to be within its Core Based Statistical Area.

6.5. Alabama Based In-State Preference

In compliance with State of Alabama Code § 41-16-57(b), the purchase of or contract for goods or services, the BWW shall give preference, provided there is no sacrifice or loss in price or quality, to commodities produced in Alabama or sold by Alabama persons, firms, or corporations.

6.6. Selection and Award

It is likely that this solicitation may result in multiple awards determined by pricing and availability. Any contract award(s) resulting from the solicitation will be made to the lowest, responsive and responsible supplier(s) meeting all specifications and with whom the BWW has reached agreement on all contract terms and conditions. The BWW reserves the right to select one or more suppliers for award by way of awarding all items to one supplier, individual line items to one or more suppliers, or subcategories of products/services to one or more suppliers when to do so is in the best interests of the BWW.

When selecting the lowest responsive and responsible supplier, the determination may involve all or some of the following factors: price, conformity to specifications, financial ability to meet the contract, previous performance, facilities and equipment, availability of repair parts, experience, delivery promise, terms of payments, compatibility as required, other costs, and other objective and accountable factors which are reasonable.

6.7. Site Visits and Oral Presentations

The BWW reserves the right to conduct site visits, request product/work samples, or to invite suppliers and/or awarded suppliers to present their product/service solution to the evaluation teams. The supplier(s) and/or awarded supplier(s) shall provide access to all manufacturer's production, testing, storage, operation, and other areas if, and when, requested by the BWW.

7. Solicitation Terms and Conditions

The contract that the BWW expects to award as a result of this solicitation will be based upon the solicitation, the successful supplier's final response as accepted by the BWW and the contract terms and conditions. The "successful supplier's final response as accepted by the BWW" shall mean: the response submitted by the awarded supplier, written clarifications, and any other terms deemed necessary by the BWW, except that no objection or amendment by a supplier to the solicitation requirements or the contract terms and conditions shall be incorporated by reference into the contract unless the BWW has explicitly accepted the supplier's objection or amendment in writing.

Exception to Terms and Conditions

By submitting a response, each supplier acknowledges its acceptance of the solicitation specifications without change except as otherwise expressly stated in their submitted responses. If a supplier takes exception to a solicitation provision, the supplier must state the reason for the exception and state the specific language it proposes to include in place of the provision. Any exceptions to any solicitation specification must be redlined with comments or countered as requested by other BWW supplied documentation, explaining the rationale for the proposed revision and submitted as an attachment to the supplier's response. Proposed exceptions must not conflict with or attempt to preempt mandatory requirements specified in the solicitation. Proposed exceptions must be in compliance with State of Alabama law. For further information regarding contracting with BWW, please go to the <u>State of Alabama Legislature Webpage</u>, select Legal Resources, and then <u>Code of Alabama</u>.

In the event the supplier is selected for potential award, the supplier will be required to enter into discussions with the BWW to resolve any contractual differences before an award is made. These

discussions are to be finalized and all exceptions resolved within the period of time identified in the schedule of events. Failure to resolve any contractual issues will lead to rejection of the supplier's response. The BWW reserves the right to proceed to discussions with the next best ranked supplier.

Exceptions that materially change the terms or the requirements of the solicitation may be deemed non-responsive by the BWW, in its sole discretion, and rejected. Contract exceptions which grant the supplier an impermissible competitive advantage, as determined by the BWW, in its sole discretion, will be rejected. If there is any question whether a particular contract exception would be permissible, the supplier is strongly encouraged to inquire via written question submitted to the Issuing Officer prior to the deadline for submitting written questions as defined by the Schedule of Events.

8. Delivery and Invoicing

Delivery of Products and/or Services

Unless otherwise stated in the solicitation and any resulting contract, items shall be shipped F.O.B. Destination. The supplier shall retain title for the risk of transportation, including the filing for loss or damages. The invoice covering the items is not payable until items are delivered and accepted by BWW. Unless the F.O.B. clause states otherwise, the seller assumes transportation and related charges either by payment or allowance.

All items shall be subject to inspection on delivery. Hidden damage will remain the responsibility of the awarded supplier to remedy without cost to the BWW, regardless of when the hidden damage is discovered.

F.O.B. Birmingham Water Works 3600 First Avenue North Birmingham, AL 35222

The BWW reserves the right to have orders delivered to different locations that are BWW owned or leased, or contractor worksites at the awarded supplier's expense.

A packing list shall accompany every shipment. The absence of a packing slip or required shipping order information may cause refusal of the shipment. The packing list shall contain: Purchase Order number, Delivery release number, item description, quantity shipped, quantity ordered, and quantity backordered (if any).

If there is a delay in products manufacturing or shipping and/or the performance of services, the awarded supplier(s) must notify the BWW, in writing, as soon as possible. The awarded supplier(s) must provide weekly updates, in writing, to the BWW for any product and/or service delays.

Invoicing

The BWW will render payment to the awarded supplier(s) by check on a net 30-day basis after receipt of the products and/or services and an invoice that has been submitted as required in this solicitation, unless the BWW authorizes alternative terms in writing. All invoices must be submitted to <u>accountspayable@bwwb.org</u>. Any discrepancies noted by the BWW must be corrected by the awarded supplier within 48 hours. The payment amount due on invoices cannot be altered by the BWW personnel. Once disputed items are resolved, the awarded supplier must submit an amended invoice, or a credit memorandum for the disputed amount. The BWW will not make partial payments on an invoice where there is a dispute. The BWW will only make payments on authorized transactions.

Invoices submitted pursuant to this solicitation must include:

- > Name and remittance address of supplier.
- Invoice date.
- > Invoice number.

- Solicitation number.
- BWW Issued PO number.
- Must clearly show the description of products and/or services to include the number of each product or line item fulfilled.
- > Contact information of the person to be notified in event of a discrepancy in the invoice.

9. Order of Preference

In the case of any inconsistency or conflict among the specific provisions of the executed contract (including any amendments accepted by both the BWW and the Awarded Supplier), the solicitation (including any subsequent addenda and written responses to supplier's questions), and the supplier's response, any inconsistency or conflict shall be resolved as follows:

- (i) First, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the executed contract.
- (ii) Second, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the solicitation.
- (iii) Third, by giving preference to the specific provisions of the supplier's response, except that objections or amendments by a supplier that have not been explicitly accepted by the BWW in writing shall not be included in the contract and shall be given no weight or consideration.

10. Indemnification

The successful bidder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Board and its present and future affiliates, and the representatives, agents, officers, and employees of each of them (The "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all loss, damage, or liability resulting from demands, claims, suits, or actions of any character presented or brought for any injuries (including death) to persons (including without limitation employees or agents of the successful bidder) and for damages to property caused by or arising out of any negligent (including strict liability), wanton, or intentional act or omission of the successful bidder, any of its subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone whose actions anyone of them may be liable or in any way associated or connected with the performance of the obligations under these specifications, in whatever manner the same may be caused, and whether or not the same be caused or arise out of the joint, concurrent or contributory negligence of any of the Indemnified Parties. The preceding indemnity shall include, but not be limited to, court costs, reasonable attorney's fees, investigation costs, defense costs, settlements, and judgments associated with such demands, claims, suits, or actions.

The Board shall not be liable for, and the successful bidder shall waive all claims against the Board and be responsible for, all loss or damage to persons or property sustained by the successful bidder, its officers, agents, or employees (except such as may arise because of the sole negligence of the Board) which may arise about the services to be performed by the successful bidder hereunder.

11. Dispute Resolutions, Governing Law, Venue, and Jurisdiction

11.1. Dispute Resolutions

The Parties hereby recognize and affirm that this Agreement is contractual in nature and that it does not involve any interest in real estate. Accordingly, all disputes, claims, controversies or litigation arising out of, or relating to, or in connection with, any provision of this Agreement or the Parties thereto, whether asserted as the basis for a claim, counterclaim or crossclaim, or a defense to a claim, counterclaim or crossclaim shall be resolved by a judge sitting without a jury. The Parties understand that they have a right to litigate disputes in court, and that they prefer to resolve their disputes through a trial before a judge sitting without a jury and that they knowingly waive any right they have to a jury trial. The Parties agree and understand that all disputes claims, controversies or litigation arising under case law, statutory law and all other laws including, but not limited to, all contract, tort and equitable relief will be subject to a trial before a judge sitting without a jury in accord with this contract

11.2. Governing Law

All contracts entered into as a result of this solicitation shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Alabama.

11.3. Venue

The Parties agree that venue for all such disputes, claims, controversies, or litigation arising from or relating to this contract or the parties thereto shall only be before the circuit court for Jefferson County, Alabama, the Birmingham division.

11.3. Jurisdiction

The Parties knowingly waive any right they have for subject matter jurisdiction and personal jurisdiction to be vested in any federal district court and that the parties hereby agree that the subject matter jurisdiction and personal jurisdiction to resolve any and all disputes, claims, controversies or litigation arising out of, or relating to, or in connection with any provision of this contract or the parties thereto, whether asserted as the basis for a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim, or a defense to a claim, counterclaim or cross-claim shall only be in the circuit court for Jefferson county, the Birmingham division.

12. List of solicitation Attachments

The following documents make up this solicitation. Any difficulty locating or accessing the following documents should be immediately reported to the Issuing Officer.

- A. BWW Main Solicitation Document (This Document)
- B. Appendix A
- C. Cost Worksheet(s)
- D. Receipt of Bid Package Form
- E. No Bid Form (only complete if you are not bidding)
- F. Vendor Checklist
- G. Supplier Information Form
- H. Certification Regarding Debarment
- I. Non-Discrimination Policy
- J. Audit Clause
- K. Supplier Diversity Questionnaire
- L. Funds Paid and Conflict of Agreement information
- M. EEO Report
- N. Insurance requirements
- O. All HUB Related Documents (Each HUB Document is Labeled as a HUB Document)

Bid Form Knife Gate Valves BID# 25-03-06

Submitted below is our firm proposal for items and services by your "Invitation to bid" and "Specifications and Conditions" for <u>Knife Gate Valves & Appurtenances for Shades</u> <u>Mountain Filter Plant</u>, due Friday, March 21, 2025, @ 10:00 a.m. The undersigned has read and understands said "Invitation to bid" and "Specifications and Conditions" and expressly agrees to be bound by the terms.

Item #	Quantity	Description	Item Cost	Total Cost
1	3	24-inch stainless steel knife gate valves with horizontally side-mounted handwheel operator and appurtenances, tested, complete and operational.		

Shipping or freight costs must be calculated in the item/total costs.

Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope, directed to the attention of the Purchasing Manager, and marked in the lower left-hand corner as follows: "BID 25-03-06 <u>Knife Gate Valves & Appurtenances for Shades Mountain Filter Plant</u>, due Friday, March 21, 2025, at 10:00 a.m.

Signed
Name
Title
Company
Address
City
StateZIP
Telephone
Email
Date

Receipt of Bid Package

The BWW Purchasing Department shall retain all hard copies of each applicable receipt of bid package(s). The BWW Purchasing Department must have an applicable, executed receipt of bid package per terms and conditions of the applicable solicitation for a potential supplier's bid to be considered responsive, pending evaluation of appropriate staff.

NO BID

If you are not bidding on this service/commodity, please complete and return this form to: Birmingham Water Works, Attn: Purchasing Manager, 3600 First Avenue North, Birmingham, Alabama 35222. All Statement of No Bid forms must be received prior to the bid opening.

Failure to respond may result in deletion of vendor's name from the Vendor/Contractor's list for the Birmingham Water Works Board.

Company Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Date:
We, the undersigned have declined to respond to your Bid No for
because of the following reasons. (Service/Commodity)
Specifications too "tight", i.e., geared toward one supplier or manufacturer only. (explain below)
Insufficient time to respond to the Bid.
We do not offer this product/service.
Specifications unclear. (explain below)
Unable to meet bond requirements.
Other (specify below)
REMARKS:

BY:__

Signed:

(Print or Type)

Description/Vendor:

Bid Date:

(If all forms are not returned with bid, your bid will be non-compliant)

GOODS AND SERVICES/PUBLIC WORKS VENDOR CHECKLIST

HUB	HUB FORMS and DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST	Yes or No
1.	HUB Form 1 – HUB Program Acknowledgement	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
2.	HUB Form 2 – HUB Compliance Form	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
ω	HUB Form 4 – Sub-Company Participation Form - Only for Sub-Contractors	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
4.	HUB Form 5 – Sub-Company Performance Form - Only for Sub-Contractors	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
5.	HUB Form 6 – Sub-Company Utilization Form – <mark>Public Works Bids only)</mark> HUB Form 6- Direct Manufacturer/Supplier Certification <mark>(Goods & Service Bids only)</mark>	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
Q.	HUB Form 7 – Hub Compliance Form – <mark>(Only for Public Works Bids)</mark>	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
Ζ.	HUB Form 8 – Prime Company Monthly Report – <mark>(Only for Public Works Bids)</mark>	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
σ	HUB Form 9 – Prime Close-out Report – <mark>(Only for Public Works Bids)</mark>	🗌 Yes 🔲 No
6	EEO Report	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
10.	Supplier Diversity Program Questionnaire	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
11.	Certification of Non-Discrimination	🗌 Yes 🛛 No
12.	Debarment Form	🗌 Yes 🔲 No

Reviewed by BWWB Personnel:



Supplier Information Form

1.	Name of Company			
	As Shown On W9 (Line 1)			
2.	Doing Business As			
	As Shown On W9 (Line 2):			
3.	Mailing Address:			
	City:			
5.	Business#:	Cell#:		
6.	Primary Contact Person:			
7.	Primary Contact Person Email:			
8.	Secondary Contact Person:			
9.	Secondary Contact Person Email			
10	Type of Business:			
	.Federal ID#:			
12	. Historically Underutilized Busines	s Status: <u>Choose Or</u>	ne	
	(MUST INCLUDE COPY OF CER	TIFICATE FROM C	ERTIFYING AGEN	ICY)

13. Description of Products and/or Services:

14. COMMENTS:

15. If you are a Prime (General Contractor), Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, please provide your Contractor License Number:

General Contractor License #:	
-------------------------------	--

Subcontractor Lice	ense # [.]	
SUDCONLIACIÓN LICO		

Sub-subcontractor License #:	
------------------------------	--

The Birmingham Water Works Board 3600 1st Avenue North, Birmingham, AL 35222 Phone: (205) 244-4300 • Website: www.bwwb.org

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT

7)
<u></u>	Bid Name and Number	

The below-signed Bidder at this moment certifies that it, its officers, directors, owners, stockholders, and its principals:

(i) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from doing business with any Federal department or agency;

(ii) Have not within three years preceding this bid been: debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from doing business with any Federal department or agency; or convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for the commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; and

(iii) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with the commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (ii) above.

Executed on this the _____ day of _____, 20____.

)

BIDDER

THE STATE OF ALABAMA

COUNTY)

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, here by certifies that ________, whose name as ________ of _______, a corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me, acknowledged that on this day, that being informed of the contents of said instrument, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said corporation.

Given under my hand, this _____ day of _____, 20____.

Notary Public My commission ends: _____



The Birmingham Water Works Board (BWWB) values the diversity of the people with whom we work and the contributions they make. Accordingly, the BWWB is committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all members of our staff, clients, volunteers, independent contractors, and vendors.

The BWWB is an equal opportunity employer and all decisions regarding recruiting, hiring, promotion, assignment, training, termination, selection of volunteers and vendors, and other terms and conditions of employment will be made without consideration of age, sex, race, color, religion, gender, gender identity or expression, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, marital status, veteran status, pregnancy status, political opinion, work-related injury, or any other factor, characteristic or trait protected by applicable national, state or local laws.

Community members are encouraged to raise concerns or make complaints regarding discrimination or harassment under this policy without the fear of retaliation. It is a violation of BWWB policy to retaliate against an individual for raising a good-faith concern regarding workplace discrimination or harassment; filing a complaint for discrimination or harassment; or, for cooperating in an investigation of alleged discrimination or harassment. Any person found to be in violation of this policy is subject to disciplinary action.

Discrimination, harassment, disrespectful or inappropriate behavior, unfair treatment or retaliation of any kind will not be tolerated. This policy applies not only to BWWB employees but also to the volunteers, independent contractors, and business partners with whom we work. BWWB employees, volunteers, independent contractors, and other constituents, whenever and wherever those individuals are conducting BWWB business or participating in BWWB events or activities, shall maintain an environment free of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation.

Any employee who has a question or concern regarding any type of discrimination or harassment is encouraged to bring it to the attention of his/her manager or the Human Resources Department.

Vendor agrees and warrants that contractor does not discriminate or permit discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment on the grounds of race, color. religion, gender, sexual orientation. gender identity or national origin.

Executed

Company Name:		
Authorized Signature:	Date:	
Printed Name and Title of Signatory:		

Audit Clause

BWWB and its authorized representatives shall have the right to audit, to examine, and to make copies of or extracts from all of Contractor's records (in whatever form they may be kept, whether written, electronic, or other) relating to or pertaining to HUB participation under this Contract kept by or under the control of Contractor, including, but not limited to those kept by the Contractor, its employees, agents, assigns, successors, and it subcontractors.

Such records shall include, but not be limited to, accounting records, written policies and procedures; subcontract files; all paid vouchers including those for out-of- pocket expenses; other reimbursement supported by invoices, ledgers, cancelled checks, deposit slips, bank statements, journals, original estimates, estimating work sheets, contract amendments and change order files, back charge logs and supporting documentation, insurance documents, payroll documents, timesheets, memoranda and correspondence (written and electronic).

Contractor shall, at all times during the term of this Contract and for a period of seven years after the completion of this Contract, maintain such records, together with such supporting or underlying documents and materials. Contractor shall at any time requested by BWWB, whether during or after completion of this Contract, make such records available for inspection and audit (including copies and extracts of records as required) by BWWB.

Contractor shall ensure BWWB has these rights with Contractor's employees, agents, assigns, successors, and subcontractors, and the obligations of these rights shall be explicitly included in any subcontracts or agreements formed between Contractor and any subcontractors to the extent that those subcontracts or agreements relate to fulfillment of the HUB participation under this Contract.



Directors/Officers

Tereshia Q. Huffman Chairwoman

William "Butch" Burbage, Jr., CPA Vice Chairman

> Thomas E. Henderson Second Vice Chairman

Raymond "Larry" Ward Secretary-Treasurer

Carl Dalton NeSmith, Esq. Assistant Secretary-Treasurer

Jonathan Harris Ivan W. Holloway Dr. Andre McShan Dr. Monique Gardner Witherspoon

> Interim General Manager

Darryl R. Jones, PE

Interim Deputy General Manager

Mac Underwood, CPA

Assistant General Managers

Derrick Murphy, MEng Engineering and Maintenance

Philip King, PE, MBA, MEng Operations and Technical Services

Barry Williams Interim Finance and Administration

RE: Request for Company Product and Service

To Whom It May Concern:

This correspondence is to request information on your company's profile and specific products and services you are interested in providing to the Birmingham Water Works Board. We are honored to have the opportunity to work with you and learn more about your company's mission.

The Birmingham Water Works Board's mission states, "The BWWB is committed to providing the highest quality of water to meet the needs and expectations of our customers and stakeholders. Our services enhance the economic, social, and environmental well-being of the communities we serve."

The Board wants to discover how your products or services can help meet its mission. Please provide details about your company's products, services, and supplier diversity program and any additional documents to explain your offerings further. Per the goals of our mission to strive to be a concerned corporate citizen, please provide information on how your company has been engaged in the community and the Birmingham Water Works service area.

You can learn more about the Birmingham Water Works Board at www.bwwb.org. Please email the request referenced to LyTonja Levert at tonja.levert@bwwb.org. Please get in touch with me if I can answer any questions. I look forward to hearing from you soon.

Sincerely,

Derrick M. Murphy, MEng Assistant General Manager Engineering and Maintenance Division

CC: LyTonja Levert Purchasing Manager



Supplier Diversity/Community Involvement Program Questionnaire

Supplier Diversity Program (SDP) promote supplier diversity in public contracting in a manner that develops, strengthens and increases business opportunities for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), Women Business Enterprise (WBE), and Veteran Business Enterprise (VBE). Please fill-out the following information on your company's SDP.

- 1. Supplier Name:
- 2. Contact Person and Title:
- 3. Contact Person's Email:
- 4. Contact Person's Office# :
- 5. Does your company have a Supplier Diversity Program:
 - a. If yes, please provide your website or any information pertaining to your SDP.

6. Community involvement is the **power to bring positive**, **measurable change to both the communities in which you operate and to your business**. Please provide any involvement with the community that your company participates in: Ex: charities, scholarships, etc. (United Way, Salvation Army, Children's Hosp., H2O Foundation, etc.) 7. Please provide a list of Minority vendors your company receives services or products from. Identify if the vendor is a MBE, WBE or DBE. Example: Jones Janitorial Services – MBE; Summer Office Supplies - WBE

Company Name	Company Contact Person	Company Contact Email	HUB Designation



FUNDS PAID AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST AGREEMENT

FUNDS PAID: Agreement that no part of the funds paid by the Water Works Board pursuant to this Agreement nor any part of the services, products or any item or thing of value whatsoever purchased or acquired with said funds shall be paid to, used by or used in anyway whatsoever for the personal benefit of any member or employee of any government entity whatsoever or family member of any of them, including federal, state, county and municipal and any agency or subsidiary of any such government; and further certify that neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or parties in interest has in any way colluded, conspired, connived, with anyone or with any member of the governingbody or employee of the governing body of the Water Works Board or any other public official orpublic employee, in any manner whatsoever, to secure or obtain this Agreement and further certifythat, except as expressively set out in the scope of work or services of this Agreement, no promiseor communicated to any such governing body member or employee or official as inducement or consideration for this contract.

Any violation of the terms and scope of services, including misuse of funds provided in this contract shall constitute a breach and default of this Agreement, which shall be cause for termination. Upon such termination of this Agreement due to breach, Contractor shall immediatelyrefund to the Water Works Board all amounts paid by the Water Works Board pursuant to this Agreement.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Contractor declares that, as of the date of the Agreement, neither the Water Works Board, nor any of the Water Works Board's employees or any director nor any other government official is directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or any agreement with the Contractor for which compensation will be sought during the period of time this Agreement is being performed. And, furthermore, the Contractor pledges that She/he/it will notify the General Manager in writing should it come to his/its knowledge that any such official becomes either directly or indirectly interested in the Agreement or any agreement with the Contractor for which compensation will be sought during the aforesaid period. In addition, the Contractor declares, that as of the date of this Agreement, neither She/he/it nor any of her/his/its officers or employees have given or donated or promised to give or donate, either directly or indirectly, to any official or employee of the Water Works Board, or to anyone else for the Water Works Board's benefit, any sum of money or other thing of value for aid or assistance in obtaining this Agreement with the Water Works Board under which compensation will be sought during the period of time this Agreement is being performed. And furthermore, that neither the Contractor nor any of her/his/its officers or employees will give or donate or promise to give or donate, directly or indirectly, to any official or employee of the Water Works Board, or to anyone else forthe Water Works Board's, Water Works Board's official, or Water Works Board's employee's benefit, any sum of money or other thing of value, for aid of assistance in obtaining any amendment to this Agreement or any other agreement with the Contractor for which compensation will be claimed during the period of time this Agreement is being performed.

(This document is for information only)

3600 1st Avenue North, Birmingham, AL 35222 (205) 244-4000 | www.bwwb.org

1. Select Appropriate Response Choose Iterm TotAL JOB CATEGORIES										İ								
		2. CON	2. COMPANY NAME, CITY, STATE:	ITY, STATE:						m	BWWB PR(JIECT/WORK	LOCATION (3. BWWB PROJECT/WORK LOCATION (CITY, COUNTY AND STATE)	(ND STATE)			
	ł		-		TABLEA	-							+			TABLE B	8	
		TOTAL RACIAL/ETHNIC MINORITY		BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN	HISPANIC OR LATINO		AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALASKA NATIVE		ASIAN	NATIVE HAWAIIAN OR OTHER PACIFIC ISLANDER		TWO OR MORE RACES	RE	WHITE	APPRE	APPRENTICES	ON THE JOB TRAINEES	E JOB
Ξ	П	L S		Ŀ	W	ш	L	W	Ľ.	æ	٤.	Σ		LL W	W	LL.	Σ	ш
OFFICIALS						_							-					
SUPERVISORS													_					
FOREMENIWOMEN													-					
CLERICAL						_						_	_					
EQUIPMENT OPERATORS													_					
MECHANICS													_					
TRUCK DRIVERS													_					
IRONWORKERS														_				
CARPENTERS																		
CEMENT MASONS							-						_		_			
ELECTRICIANS													_					
PIPEFITTERS/PLUMBERS													_					
PAINTERS													-					
LABORERS - SEMI SKILLED		-				_							_					
LABORERS - UNSKILLED						_							-		_			
TOTAL		-				_						-	-	_	_			
APRENTICES																		
.J TRAINEES												_	-	_				~
4. PREPARED BY: (Signature and Title of Contractor Representative)					6. DATE		6. REV (Signatu	IEWED BY tre and Title	: of BWWB Re	6. REVIEWED BY: (Signature and Title of BWWB Representative)	6					7. DATE		

INSURANCE

Competitive Bids

Contractors shall not commence any work until all the insurance as provided herein is obtained nor until the Board has approved such insurance. Certificates issued by the Contractor's Insurance Company must be filed with the Board before any work is commenced as evidence of the insurance as provided herein. Such certificates must contain a clause stating that the Insurance Company will notify the Board ten days prior to any change, cancellation or renewal of the Contractor's insurance.

Workmen's Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall carry Workmen's Compensation Insurance during the life of the Contract to insure statutory liability to their employees.

Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage: The Contractor shall carry Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage Insurance during the life of the contract covering all of the Contractor's own operations.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage: The Contractor shall carry Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance during the life of the contract covering (a) Contractor's own automobile equipment and (b) hired and non-owned vehicles.

THE WATER WORKS BOARD OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB)

General Mission Statement

The Water Works Board of the City of Birmingham ("BWWB") has adopted a voluntary Historically Underutilized Business ("HUB") Program designed to encourage the participation of HUB firms in construction projects and goods and services. To that end, the BWWB will not exclude any firm from participation in, deny any person benefits of, or otherwise discriminate in connection with the award and performance of BWWB construction contracts and goods and services bids based on racial gender social or economic status.

It is the intent of the BWWB to foster competition among contractors, suppliers, and vendors that will result in better quality and more economical services for the BWWB. Under this program, the BWWB has established a goal of 30% participation of HUB firms for services required for BWWB construction projects goods and services. The BWWB's stated goal will not be the determining factor in construction and goods and services contract awards; rather bidders must demonstrate compliance with the Good Faith Efforts, more particularly outlined below, toward meeting said goal.

Failure on the part of a bidder to fully submit the information required herein may be considered by the BWWB in evaluating whether the bidder is responsive to bid requirements.

<u>NOTE:</u> If Bidder is a direct manufacturer/direct supplier of the goods or services sought in this Bid and has no opportunities for HUB participation, Bidder should fill out the Direct Manufacturer/Supplier Certification Form 6.

Program Goals

- To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of BWWB construction contracts and goods and services.
- To help to remove barriers to the participation of HUB firms in receiving BWWB construction contracts and bids for goods and services.
- To create a level playing field on which HUB firms can compete fairly for BWWB construction contracts and bids for goods and services.

Definitions

- 1. Historically Underutilized Business (HUB): A business formed for the purpose of making a profit and is at least 51% owned, operated and/or controlled by one or more American citizens or permanent resident aliens who are: Minority Business Enterprise (MBE); Women's Business Enterprise (WBE); Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and Disable Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE); (herein sometimes collectively referred to as HUB).
- 2. Minority Business Enterprise (MBE): A business that is formed for the purpose of making a profit and is at least 51% owned, operated and/or controlled by a person who is a member of the following groups: African/Black Americans; Hispanic Americans; Asian Pacific Americans; Subcontinent Asian Americans; Native Americans or American Women.

- 3. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE): A business that is formed for the purpose of making a profit and is at least 51% owned, operated and/or controlled by one or more socially and/or economically disadvantaged individuals. A socially disadvantaged individual is one who has been a subject of racial, ethnic or gender bias because of their membership in a group. An economically disadvantaged individual is one whose ability to compete in the free enterprise system is impaired due to diminished opportunities to obtain capital and credit.
- 4. Women's Business Enterprise (WBE): A business enterprise formed for the purpose of making a profit and is at least 51% owned, operated and/or controlled by American citizens or permanent resident aliens who are women.

Resources for Identifying HUB Participants

Each bidder/prime contractor must contact BWWB HUB for assistance in identifying HUB participants. In addition to the BWWB, the following are resources for identifying HUB participants. Each bidder/prime contractor must show proof that where appropriate, these other resources were contacted for assistance in identifying Hub participants. The other resources are:

1. Alabama State Black Chamber of Commerce

Jerry Mitchell Email: wehelp@alblackcc.org Website: https://alblackcc.org Phone: (256) 551-0673 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 550022 Birmingham AL 35255

2. Alabama Department of Economic and Community Affairs (ADECA)

Office of Minority Business Enterprise (OMBE) Scott Stewart, Program Supervisor Email: Scott.stewart@adeca.alabama.gov Website: www.adeca.alabama.gov Phone: (334) 353-3966 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5690 Montgomery, AL 36103-5690

3. Birmingham Airport Authority (BAA)

Ryan Devaney, ACDBE/DBE/Title VI Administrator Email: rveney@flybham.com Website: www.flybirmingham.com Phone: (205) 599-0568 FAX: (205) 599-0538 Mailing Address: 5900 Messer Airport Highway Birmingham, Alabama 35212

4. Alabama Department of Transportation Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

Ms. Walter Carr, DBE Liaison Officer Email: carrw@dot.state.al.us Website: <u>www.dot.state.al.us</u> Phone: (334) 242-6242 FAX: (334) 242-6256 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 303050 Montgomery, AL 36130

5. City of Birmingham, Department of Innovation & Economic Opportunity (IEO)

Coreata' Houser, Deputy Director Email: coreata.houser@birminghamal.gov Website: https://ieo.birminghamal.gov Phone: (205) 254-2799 Fax: (205) 254-7741 Mailing Address: City Hall/Third Floor 710 North 20th Street Birmingham, AL 35203

6. U.S. Small Business Administration, Alabama District Office

Carol HouseorSandrieka MooreEmail: Carol.house@sba.govsandrieka.moore@sba.govPhone: (205) 290-7892sandrieka.moore@sba.govFAX (205) 290-7404sandrieka.moore@sba.govWebsite: https://www.sba.gov/district/alabamasandrieka.moore@sba.govMailing Address: 2 N. 20th St., Suite 325 Birmingham, AL 35203

7. National Association of Minority Contractors (NAMC of Greater Atlanta)

Kellye A. Britton, Executive Director Email: info@namcatlanta.org Phone: (678) 943-9667 Website: www.namc-atl.org Mailing Address: 352 University Ave, S136 Atlanta, GA 30310

8. Birmingham Construction Industry Authority (BCIA)

Kimberly Baylor BivinsORAshley OrlEmail: kbaylorbivins@bcia1.orgaorl@bcia1.orgPhone: (205) 324.6202Fax: (205) 324.6210Website: https://bcia1.org/Website: https://bcia1.org/Mailing Address: 601 37th Street South Birmingham, AL 35222

9. Southern Region Minority Supplier Development Council

Mark Samuels, Regional Director-Small Business Services/Opportunity Sourcing Email: msamuel@srmsdc.org Phone (504) 293-0404 Fax (504) 293-0401 Website: https://www.srmsdc.org/ Mailing Address: 400 Poydras Street, Suite 1960, New Orleans, LA 70130

10. Birmingham Business Resource Center

Bob Dickerson, Executive Director Email: bdickerson@bbrc.biz Phone: (205) 250-6380 ext. 6610 Website: www.mybbrc.biz Mailing Address: 1500 1st Ave N Unit 12, Birmingham, AL 35203

11. Department of Veterans Affairs

Brandon Miller Email: brandon.miller@va.alabama.gov Website: https://va.alabama.gov/ Mailing Address: 100 North Union Street, Suite 850, Montgomery Alabama 36104

12. Women's Business Enterprise Council South (WBENC)

Lance Mitchell, Director of Certification & Sourcing Email: lmitchell@wbecsouth.org Phone: (205) 440-5154 or (504) 830-0149 Website: www.wbecsouth.org Mailing Address: 401 Saint Joseph St Ste 2A, New Orleans, LA 70130

13. Alabama Small Business Development Center Network (SBDC)

Alabama APEX Accelerator

Tory Shumpert, Procurement Specialist Email: tory.shumpert@ua.edu Phone: (205) 348-1687 Website: https://apexal.org/ or https://www.asbdc.org/BHM/ Mailing Address: 1500 1st Avenue N. Birmingham, AL 35203

14. Black Contractors Association, Inc.-Alabama Chapter

Jarrod Sims Email: info@blackcontractorsassociationinc.org Phone: (205) 737-1599 Website: https://blackcontractorsassociationinc.org/ Mailing Address: P.O. Box 12104 Birmingham, AL 35202

15. Birmingham Business Alliance

Victor Brown, Small Business Director Email: vbrown@birminghambusinessalliance.com Phone: (205) 241-8109 Website: www.birminghambusinessalliance.com Mailing Address: 505 20th St N Ste 200, Birmingham, AL 35203

16. Associated Builders & Contractors of Alabama

Jay Reed Email: jay@abc-alabama.org Phone: (205) 870-9768 Fax: (205) 879-5090 Website: www.abc-alabama.org Mailing Address: 1830 28th Ave S, Birmingham, AL 35209

17. U.S. Minority Contractors Association (Alabama Chapter)

Jimmy Morris or Vivian McGrew Email: <u>info@usminoritycontractors.org</u> Phone: (847) 852-5010 Website: https://usminoritycontractors.org/ Mailing Address: 702 Commerce Court Suites B Prattville, Alabama 36066

Affirmative Steps for Good Faith Solicitation

All bidders must submit to BWWB in their sealed bids evidence of the following Affirmative Steps taken to utilize HUB's. These Affirmative Steps are required methods to ensure that HUB's have the opp01tunity to compete for contracts with BWWB.

It is up to BWWB to make a fair and reasonable judgement whether a bidder/prime company made adequate good faith efforts. The BWWB will consider the quality, quantity, and intensity of the different kinds of efforts that the bidder/prime company made. The efforts employed by the bidder/prime company should be those that one could reasonably expect a bidder/prime company to take if the bidder/prime company were actively and aggressively trying to obtain HUB participation sufficient to meet the HUB Program goals.

Below is a list of types of steps that BWWB will consider as part of the bidder's/prime company's good faith efforts to obtain HUB participation. It is not intended to be a mandatory checklist, nor is it intended to be exclusive or exhaustive. Other factors or types of efforts may be relevant in appropriate cases:

- 1. Ensure HUBs are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities. Soliciting through all reasonable and available means (e.g., attendance at pre-bid meetings, advertising, and written notices) the interest of all certified HUB's who have the capability to perform the work of the contract. The bidder/prime company must solicit this interest within sufficient time to allow the HUBs to respond to the solicitation. The bidder/prime company must determine with certainty if the HUBs are interested by taking appropriate steps to follow up initial solicitations.
- 2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to HUB's and arrange time frames for the submission and finalization of contracts and established delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by HUB businesses in the competitive process. This includes, at a minimum, seeking and receiving solicitations for contract bids or proposals 2 calendar days before sealed bids are due to BWWB.
- 3. Once the contract has been awarded, the prime company should continue to use its best efforts to further increase HUB participation toward reaching the BWWB stated goal.
- 4. Consider in the bidding process when competing for large contracts the possibility of dividing total requirements whenever economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to pelmit maximum participation by HUBs in the competitive process.
- 5. Encourage contracting with a consortium of HUB's when a contract is too large for one such film to handle individually.
- 6. Negotiate in good faith with interested HUB sub-companies. Evidence of such good faith negotiations should include the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of HUB sub-companies that were considered; a description of the information provided regarding the request for proposal, request for qualifications, plans and specifications for the work selected for contracting; and evidence as to why additional agreements could not be reached for HUB sub-companies to perform the work.
- 7. Provide documented proof of steps taken to comply with items 1 through 7 above.

Bidders/Prime companies must submit or provide the following HUB Forms as outlined below:

1) Acknowledgement of HUB Program (HUB Form 1). All bidders are to read, sign and <u>include</u> in their sealed bid the Acknowledgement of HUB Program, indicating that they fully understand and will voluntarily participate in and follow the guidelines and instructions included in the BWWB HUB Program.

2) <u>HUB Compliance Form (HUB Form 2).</u> This form must be completed <u>and included with all</u> <u>sealed bids</u> for goods and services/public works with the BWWB.

3) <u>HUB BID SOLICITATION NOTICE (HUB FORM 3).</u> All bidders shall complete this form and submit to the BWWB and the HUB Consultant no later than seven (7) days after the scheduled date of the pre-bid conference. This form may be submitted in person at the pre-bid conference. Prospective bidders are to submit with their bid documents a copy of their HUB Form 3 with acknowledgement of receipt box completed by the HUB Consultant. (This form has been removed)

4) **HUB Sub-company Participation Form (HUB Form 4).** This form gives a HUB sub-company the opportunity to describe the work the HUB sub-company received from the bidder/prime company, how much the HUB sub-company was paid, and any other concerns the HUB sub-company might have. Bidder/prime company shall provide copies of **HUB Form 4** to all HUB sub-companies.

5) **HUB Sub-company Performance Form (HUB Form 5).** This form captures an intended HUB sub-company's description of work to be performed for the bidder and the price of the work proposed to be performed by the HUB sub-company. This form is to be provided by the bidder to each HUB sub-company and submitted along with the HUB Compliance Form included in the bid documents.

6) <u>HUB Direct Manufacturer/Supplier Certification (HUB Form 6).</u> This form captures the direct manufacturers or suppliers of goods and services sought in the bid and have no distributors, wholesalers, retailers, or other intermediaries, and thus do not have any opportunities for HUB participation in this Bid. (This form is used for Goods and Services bids only)

7) <u>HUB Sub-company Utilization Form (HUB Form 6).</u> This form captures the bidder's/prime company's intended use of an identified HUB sub-company and the estimated dollar amount of the work. This form is to be completed by the bidder/prime company and submitted with the HUB Compliance Form included in the bid documents.

(This form is used for Public Works bids only)

8) <u>Changes to Approved HUB Compliance Form (HUB Form 7).</u> If any changes, substitutions, or additions are proposed to the sub-company identified in the bid or any other time during the work, <u>the bidder/prime company must submit this information to BWWB for prior written approval</u>. No changes to the sub-company can occur without the BWWB's prior written consent.

(This form is used for Public Works bids only)

9) Monthly Report Form (HUB Form 8). With each monthly pay request submitted to BWWB, the prime company is required to submit updated monthly HUB Form 8 reports which identify HUB firms' participation. Monthly pay requests will not be processed without the updated list of HUB firms. (This form is used for Public Works bids only)

10) <u>Project Close-out Report (HUB Form 9).</u> Upon completion of the contract and prior to final payment or release of retainage, the prime company is required to submit a HUB Form 9 Project Close-Out Report that includes a final listing of all HUB participants on the project. The Project Close-Out Report, with documented HUB participation, is a <u>prerequisite</u> to process the final pay request. (This form is used for Public Works bids only)

Sub-companies must be certified as HUBs in order to be counted toward the bidder's/prime company's HUB accomplishments.

The documentation of the good faith solicitation efforts must be detailed in order to allow for satisfactory review. Such documentation might include fax confirmation sheets, copies of solicitation letters/emails, printouts of the online solicitations, printouts of online search results, affidavits of publication in newspapers, etc. The bidder/prime company is strongly encouraged to follow up on each written, fax, or email solicitation with at least one logged phone call.

The bidder/prime company must employ the affirmative steps set out above to subcontract with HUB, even if the bidder/prime company has met its goal of HUB participation.

If a HUB sub-company fails to complete work under the subcontract for any reason, the prime company must notify BWWB in writing prior to any termination and must employ the good faith efforts described above if using a replacement sub-company. Any proposed changes from an approved HUB sub-company must be reported to BWWB on the Changes to Approved HUB Compliance Form (HUB Form 7) prior to initiation of the action.

HUB FORM ONE (HUB Program Acknowledgment)

The Water Works Board of the City of Birmingham ("BWWB") has initiated a program to encourage the participation of HUB companies (as that term is defined in the HUB Program) on BWWB's Goods and services/Public works bids. This signed statement serves as an acknowledgment by the undersigned bidder/Prime company that it fully understands and will voluntarily participate in and follow the guidelines and instructions included in the BWWB HUB Program.

Company: _____

Submitted By (Print Name and Job Title): _____

Signature: _____

HUB FORM TWO (HUB Program Compliance Instructions)

Please submit the following with the HUB COMPLIANCE FORM:

- I. List of all committed and uncommitted subcontractors by trade, including_ company name, address, telephone number, contact person, dollar amount of subcontract, and HUB status. Indicate in writing if no solicitations were made because the contractor intends to use only its own forces to accomplish the work.
- II. Proof of HUB certification for each subcontractor listed as a HUB.
- III. Documentation of solicitation effort for prospective HUB firms, such as fax confirmation sheets, copies of solicitation letters/emails, printout of the online solicitations, printouts of online search results, affidavits of publication in newspapers, etc. The prime contractor is strongly encouraged to follow up each written, fax, or email solicitation with at least one logged phone call.
- IV. Justification for not selecting a certified HUB subcontractor that submitted a low bid for any subcontract area.
- V. HUB Form 5 HUB Subcontractor Performance Form.
- VI. HUB Form 6 HUB Subcontractor Utilization Form.

HUB FORM TWO

HUB Compliance Form

ALL INFORMATION OUTLINED ON THIS FORM IS REQUIRED FOR HUB COMPLIANCE. THE PROPOSED BIDDER/PRIME COMPANY SHOULD ENSURE THAT THIS INFORMATION IS COMPLETE **PRIOR** TO SUBMITTAL.

CERTIFICATIONS:

I certify that the information submitted on and with this form is true and accurate and that this firm has met and will continue to meet the conditions of this contract regarding HUB solicitation and utilization. I further certify criteria used in selecting sub-companies and suppliers were applied equally to all potential participants and that HUB Sub-company Participation Form (HUB Form 4) and HUB Sub-company Performance Form (HUB Form 5) were distributed to all HUB contractors.

Bidder/Prime Company:

Bidder/Prime Company (Printed- Authorized Signing Agent Name and Title):

Authorized Signature and Date:

GENERAL INFORMATION

Owner's Name:

Owner phone number/email:

Bidder/prime company:

Bidder/prime company Point of Contact:

Bidder/prime phone number/email:

Bidder/prime company total bid amount: \$_____

Proposed HUB Sub-company participation amount:
S_____Percentage: ____%

HUB FORM 6 (GOODS AND SERVICES) DIRECT MANUFACTURER/SUPPLIER CERTIFICATION

I/we hereby certify that we are direct manufacturers or suppliers of the goods or services sought in this Bid and have no distributors, wholesalers, retailers or other intermediaries, and thus do not have any opportunities for HUB participation in this Bid.

Bidder Name	Bid/Contract Name	
Bid/Proposal No.	Poin	t of Contact
Address		
Telephone No.	Email Address	

Please use the space below to explain the details about your business and why there are no HUB opportunities for your bid:

Print Name
Date